Merrimack School District/SAU 26
School Board Special Meeting
Preliminary Agenda
January 8, 2024
Merrimack Town Hall — Matthew Thornton Room

5:30 p.m. NON-PUBLIC SESSION RSA 91-A:3, 11 (a) (b) (¢) — Merrimack TV Training Classroom

Negotiations

6:00 p.m. PUBLIC MEETING

6:00 p.m.
6:05 p.m.

6:15 p.m.

6:30 p.m.

8:00 p.m.

9:15 p.m.

p.m.

p.m.

1. CALL TO ORDER and PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE Ken Martin
2. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION Ken Martin
3. NEW BUSINESS (part 1)
a. Merrimack High Scoreboard Fundraising Presentation Sean Powers
4. BUDGET PRESENTATIONS Ken Martin
a. Mermrimack Middle School Chrigus Boezeman, Kathy Hoppa
b. Merrimack High School Steve Claire, Rich Zampieri, Jill Hanlon
c¢. Additional Sessions with Department, if needed
d. Budget Work Session and Warrant Article Discussion
e. Other
5. NEW BUSINESS (part 2)
a. Bond Hearing Date and Warrant Article for Construction of Matt Shevenell
New Student Services and Central Office Consolidated Building
6. APPROVAL OF MINUTES Ken Martin
a. December 18, 2023 Public and Non-Public Minutes
7. PUBLIC COMMENTS ON AGENDA ITEMS Ken Martin
8. ADJOURN Ken Martin

* These times are estimates and may vary depending on discussion.



OO b W N —

-h-h-h-b-h-b-l:-h-b-bwwwwwwwwww[\)wmmw[\.)[\.)[\)Nm»—-»-.._u_-»_.._.._-.—;....._.
OO UNPRWN= OO IO UNMBEBWN—=OWO -1 L & W D — SO NN PBRWN—=D

Merrimack School Board Meeting
Merrimack School District, SAU #26
Merrimack Town Hall — Matthew Thornton Room
December 18, 2023

Present: Chair Ken Martin, Vice-Chair Laurie Rothhaus, Board Member Jenna Hardy, and Board

Member Naomi Halter. Also present were Chief Educational Officer Everett Olsen, Assistant
Superintendent for Business Matt Shevenell, and Assistant Superintendent of Curriculum Doyle.

Not Present:

Board Member Lori Peters (Excused)
Student Representative Shaun Evidente (Excused)

1. CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Chair Martin called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. and led the Pledge of Allegiance.

2. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
There was none.

3. BUDGET PRESENTATIONS

a. Food Service

Assistant Superintendent for Business Shevenell noted that the Food Service was a special
revenue fund, and the revenue it received paid for the program, and it did not have any impact on
the tax rate. He said due to the COVID-19 money received from the government, the account
had a surplus, and that surplus had to go back to the program.

Mr. Dave Dziki, Food Service Director, presented the Food Service Department’s proposed
budget as summarized below:

o The district received federal funds for free and reduced meals where applicable.
e The district also received federal funds for each meal served.

e The district received federal funds in the form of surplus foods from the
United States Department of Agriculture (USDA.)

e The district belonged to the New Hampshire Buying Group.

Mr. Dziki explained that the item that probably stood out the most in the budget was equipment
replacement. He added that the prior year, he was having issues with the biggest freezer in the
district, which was where he stored all of the surplus USDA commodity foods. He said a new
freezer had been installed.

Page 10f9



50  Mr. Dziki said he would like to replace ovens at the James Mastricola Upper Elementary School
51 and the Merrimack Middle School.

52

53 Mr. Dziki, addressing a question regarding the Food Service Improvement and Development line
54  item, explained that the $1,400 had been included in the budget for many years, and it was in
55  there in the event he needed to attend an out-of-state conference. He added that he was on the
56  Board of the New Hampshire Food Nutrition Association, and they had paid for a lot of previous
57  conference fees.

58

59  Mr. Dziki said the district served between 275,000 and 300,000 lunches per year.

60

61  Board Member Halter asked if the new ovens would come with warranties. Mr. Dziki replied that
62  the ovens would have warranties that would last between three to five years.

63

64  Vice-Chair Rothhaus said she was very appreciative of all the Food Service employees.

65

66  Chief Educational Officer Olsen noted that he had provided the Board with some information they
67  had gathered from the Federal Reserve Board and the Bureau of Labor Statistics regarding the
68 increase in appropriations, particularly for supplies. He said it included a graphical representation
69 of what had happened to pricing regarding educational books and supplies, institutional
70  furnishings, insurance, and transportation services. He said he would place the document online
71  so the public could see it as well.

72

73 b. K-6 Elementary Schools (James Mastricola Elementary School, Reeds Ferry Elementary
74 School, Thorntons Ferry Elementary School, and the James Mastricola Elementary School
75

76 Ms. Julie DeLuca, Principal, Thorntons Ferry Elementary School; Ms. Brooke Ross Assistant
77 Principal, Thorntons Ferry Elementary School; Ms. Bonnie Painchaud, Principal, Reeds Ferry
78  Elementary School; Ms. Laura Livie, Assistant Principal, Reeds Ferry Elementary School: Ms.
79  Michelle Romein, Principal, James Mastricola Elementary School, Ms. Kathleen Ortega, Assistant
80  Principal, James Mastricola Elementary School; and Ms. Meaghan Fowler, Assistant Principal,
81  James Mastricola Upper Elementary School; proposed budgets as summarized below:

82

83  Ms. Deluca said the proposed elementary school budgets for the 2024 — 2025 school year
84  continued to reflect the priorities established by the Merrimack School District and the Merrimack
85  School Board. “We continue to invest in all academic disciplines and co-curricular activities, as
86  well as ensuring that the offerings across the three lower elementary schools are equitable.”

87

88 e The addition of teachers is based on actual enroliments in grades 1 — 4 and

89 anticipated enrollments in kindergarten.

90

91 e The increase in teachers also reflected the alignment of class sizes across

92 all three of the lower elementary schools.

93

94 o Reeds Ferry: Proposed three classroom teachers in grades 1 & 3.

95

96 o James Mastricola Elementary School: Proposed one classroom teacher in kindergarten.
97

98 o Thorntons Ferry Elementary School: Proposed one classroom teacher in grade 2.
99

Page 2 of 9



100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119

120
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128
129
130
131
132
133
134
135
136
137
138
139
140
141
142
143
144
145
146
147

148
149

Ms. DeLuca stated that in addition to investing in more teachers, they continued to invest in early
education.

e The increase of kindergarten Instructional Assistants.
o Thorntons Ferry Elementary School: Proposed 1 Instructional Assistant.
o James Mastricola Elementary School: Proposed 1 Instructional Assistant.

e ESL (English as a Second Language): 2024 — 2025

o Thorntons Ferry Elementary School: Proposed 1 ESL teacher.

Ms. Del.uca pointed out that currently, there was one ESL teacher with a total of 48 students.

e Continue to offer co-curricular activities in after-school educator-led enrichment activities.

e About 50% of students at Thorntons Ferry Elementary School, James Mastricola Elementary
School, and Reeds Ferry Elementary School participated in the co-curricular activities.

e Continue to invest in facilities and learning space in the schools.
o Art room redesign at James Mastricola Elementary School: $9,500.
o New classroom furniture for teachers.
o New gymnasium barrier dividers at Reeds Ferry and Thorntons Ferry.
o Investin additional privacy dividers for special education classrooms at Reeds Ferry.
o Replace old, heavy 3" grade chairs at Thorntons Ferry.
e There was an increase in student participation in the elementary chorus.

o 60% of 3 & 4" grade students participated in chorus at Thorntons Ferry.
(An increase of 30% from two years ago.)

o 62% of students at Reeds Ferry participated in chorus.

o Proposed investment in drums, ukuleles, xylophones, and supplies for musical
productions, and supplies for the curriculum, including a recorder.

e Curriculum

Ms. Deluca stated that the district was benefiting from a continued shift from balanced to
structured literacy, and to round out the shift; they would be investing in a knowledge-building
curriculum called “Wit & Wisdom.”

Page 3 0of9



150
151
152

153
154
155
156
157
158
159
160
161
162
163
164
165
166
167
168
169
170
171
132
173
174
175
176
177
178
179
180
181
182

183

184
185
186
187
188
189
190
191
192
193
194
195
196
197
198
199

e Police Details

o Increase in line items as events at the schools were very large. This would be to
increase safety.

o Proposed increase to five police details at Reeds Ferry.

o Proposed increase to four police details at Thorntons Ferry.

o Proposed increase to three police details at James Mastricola Elementary.
e Supply Accounts

o Increase in the cost of supplies.

o The elementary schools spent an average of $38.00 per student for basic classroom supplies.

o Increase in cost of Safety Backpacks.

Ms. Fowler, addressing the James Mastricola Upper Elementary School budget, stated the
following, as summarized below:

“The primary focus for the development of the 2024 — 2025 budget for the James Mastricola Upper
Elementary School was to provide adequate supplies, equipment, and materials to implement the
JMUES school programs. Factors that are significant in this year’s budget include:”

The purchase of new reading and writing materials that supported structured literacy.

The continuation of funds to support all content areas.

The continuation of funds to support all Unified Arts classes.

The continuation of co-curricular funds to provide interested students with opportunities to
participate in educator-led, afterschool enrichment activities.

QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE BOARD

Question. Tell me more about the elementary co-curricular budget items, what activities are
being offered, and what percentage of students are participating.

Answer: Ms. Romein replied that Ms. DelLuca had already reviewed the answer to the question.
Ms. Romein added that they capped the number of students participating in the clubs at 15. She
added that it was open to educators who were part of the MTA contract as well as educators who
were part of the MESSA contract.

Question: How are gifted and talented students identified, how long did it take to identify them,
what did a personalized learning plan look like, what enrichment activities were being offered, and
how was the success of the program measured? Can students at all grade levels be added to
the program once they are identified?”

Page 4 of 9



200
201
202
203
204
205
206
207
208
209
210
211
212
213
214
215
216
217
218
219
220
221
222
223
224
225
226
227
228
229
230
231
232
233
234
235
236
237
238
239
240
241
242
243
244
245
246
247
248
249
250
251

Answer: Assistant Superintendent of Curriculum Doyle replied that the district had adopted the
Cognitive Abilities Test, which had a screener for all students, and if a student scored at the 90"
percentile or above, they were eligible to take the post-screener. She said there were
approximately 60 students between all of the lower elementary schools. She added that from that
point, the eligibility was at the 94" percentile or above.

Assistant Superintendent of Curriculum Doyle commented that she felt they were using a very
strong identification process. She said new students could be added at any time, noting that the
CogAT was a kindergarten through grade 12 assessmenttool. She said some parents had asked
for their students to be rescreened, and they were. She added that there were two gifted and
talented teachers in the lower elementary schools.

Question: Please explain the increase in costs for supplies for science classes.

Answer: Ms. Deluca said the science instruction was currently aligned across kindergarten
through grade 5. She said there were additional purchases in part because they were teaching
science at the kindergarten levels, and they were aligned with the Next Generation of Science
Standards, which included more rigorous requirements regarding teacher instruction. She added
that they were purchasing additional “Mystery Packs” that included science supplies that were
aligned with all of the Mystery Science lessons.

Ms. Deluca also stated that there was an additional question regarding the Next Generation of
Science Standards. She said the average cost per student was $15.00.

Question: Please explain the increase in costs for music classes.

Answer: Ms. Painchaud replied that the increase in music supplies at all three elementary
schools reflects an intentional investment in the music programs. Some of the instruments and
music supplies required replacement as many of these resources had not been updated for years.
We have seen a significant interest in chorus. The music supply account had been relatively lower
in past years.

Question: How much does a ream of paper cost, and have inflationary costs been affecting the
increase in the item?

Answer: Ms. Painchaud replied that the cost of a ream of paper had gone from $26.00 per case
to upwards of $51.00 per case.

Question: There is a decrease of $1,400.00 in the English Language Arts text account. Please
explain this decrease.

Answer: Ms. Romein replied that some of it had to do with the purchase of Wit & Wisdom. She
also said that they purchased a number of foundational skills materials for five kindergarten
classes, but they only had four.

Question: Please explain the new core reading program. How do we expect this program will
benefit students, and how will we measure its success?

Answer: Assistant Superintendent of Curriculum Assistant Superintendent of Curriculum Doyle
stated that in the past year, the district has significantly invested in the word recognition part of
Scarborough’s Reading Rope. She said what was being proposed was the language
comprehension portion and the core text of Wit & Wisdom was at the center of the program, and

Page 5 of 9



252
253
254
255
256
237
258
259
260
261
262
263
264
265
266
267
268
269
270
271
272
273
274
275
276
277
278
279
280
281
282
283
284
285
286
287
288
289
290
291
292
293
294
295
296
297
298
299
300
301
302
303

it looked at potential areas of interest for students, how they could build long-term knowledge
around events in history, events in science, and historically people and places. She said if the
voters approved the budget, they would provide high-quality professional development for the
teachers. She added that the request included digital access for teachers and students.
Assistant Superintendent of Curriculum Doyle pointed out that the Knowledge Matters Campaign
recognized Wit & Wisdom and was only one of six knowledge-building curricula that had that
endorsement.

Question: We lost 52 students from pre-K — grade 12 from 2019 — 2023. | do not believe we
decreased staffing at that time. Please confirm. The projected enroliment for 2024 — 2025 is
only two students, more than the total number of students in 2019. Are you asking to add teachers
or move them from one school to another?

Answer: Chief Educational Officer Olsen said the enroliment had dropped by 52 students since
2019, and the main question surrounding that was if the amount of staffing had decreased. He
said it all depended on the density of the decline with respect to a particular building or buildings.
He also said they had roughly 80 classes in grades pre-K — grade 4, and if you took those 52
students over 80 classes, it was about .6 students per class, and that meant a staff member could
not be cut. Alternatively, he said if those 52 students were in a particular school over two or three
grade levels, then he would suggest a reduction in staff. He said the decrease in students was
distributed among all of the elementary schools.

Question: Can you please explain the costs of the telephones at the elementary schools? Reed
Ferry is budgeted for $6,911. How many phones does this represent across the schools? Are
there less expensive systems we could look into?

Answer: Assistant Superintendent for Business Shevenell said the district used VOIP (voice over
IP) for its phone system. He said the district had approximately 653 telephones. He said they
wanted to look into replacing the systems. He said the amount of money the district was spending
on phone service had not changed since 2016 because they were using VOIP, which was about
$80,000. He added the Cisco phones needed replacement. He said part of the charge for the
phone service was the internet that ran VOIP.

Question: | would like to know the number of students projected in grades K — 4 in each school
at each grade level with the 5-year enrollment trends.

Answer: Chief Educational Officer Olsen said the Board had been provided with enroliment
information in the budget introduction material. He said he would be happy to break that
information down more if the Board wanted. Vice-Chair Rothhaus said she would appreciate
more information.

Vice-Chair Rothhaus also commented that the Town of Merrimack had been assessed at $74
million less for industrial and commercial properties, but residential property values were still
going up. She said the tax bills went out, and the average family in Merrimack was paying $800.00
to $1,000.00 more in taxes. Assistant Superintendent for Business Shevenell replied that if the
budget were flat and had not gone up at all, the tax burden shifted to those who owned single-
family homes; their taxes would have still gone up, even if the appropriation did not go up because
of the shift in the value or the shift in the burden of who paid what.

Question: | would like to learn more about the assemblies. This is in reference to the
kindergarten assemblies.

Page 6 of 9



304
305
306
307
308
309
310
311
312
313
314
315
316
317
318
319
320
321
322
323
324
325
326
327
328
329
330
331
332
333
334
335
336
337
338
359
340
341
342
343
344
345
346
347
348
349
350
351
352
253
354
355

Answer: Ms. Deluca replied that the reason they had the line item was because the kindergarten
students did not go on traditional field trips outside of school. She said the line item was for when
the Carriage Shack Farm visited.

Question: What caused the cost of science field trips to go up?

Answer: Ms. DelLuca replied that they looked at the alignment with the units they were teaching.
She said they added a field trip in 3" grade to the Great Bay Discovery Center, and it was located
further away, so there was an increase in buses and chaperones.

Question: There was a question regarding shelving.

Answer: Ms. Romein explained there was a line item in their proposed budget to replace the
shelving that was built when the school was built in approximately the 1960s. She said the
materials were stored on shelves that the students could not reach. She also said they would like
to replace the sinks.

Question: There was a question regarding the travel account for the Reeds Ferry Elementary
School and the Thorntons Ferry Elementary School.

Answer: Ms. Deluca said there was an increase in staff members utilizing the account, and
they had to travel further.

Question: There was a question regarding the line item for the reading texts at Reeds and
Thorntons Ferry. What was the difference between that line item and the one for the language
art’s texts?

Answer. Ms. Del.uca replied that there was a difference in the number of students and the
number of classrooms. She said they also wanted to do Scholastic Storyworks. She added it
was more costly because there was a higher enroliment and there were more teachers.

Assistant Superintendent of Curriculum Doyle also pointed out that the Geo kits were costly.
Question: What are the costs of repairing instruments in music classes?

Answer: Ms. Fowler replied that the costs of repairing instruments had gone up. She added that
it also included piano tuning.

Question: There was a question about why the travel account at the James Mastricola Upper
Elementary School had not been used.

Answer: Ms. Fowler replied that the travel account would be used in the current year for
professional development retreats.

Question: Board Member Halter said the previous year, she had asked what Project Safeguard
was. She said she had the opportunity to attend one with her then-6th-grader and felt it was a
very good experience. She commented that it might be a good idea to do some excitement
building about it in the 5" grade.

Question/Comment: Board Member Halter commented that the district was taking many existing
programs and evaluating them to see if they were still up to date. She asked what the district was
doing to evaluate the effectiveness of the program.

Page 7 of 9




356
357
358
359
360
361
362
363
364
365
366
367
368
369
370
371
372
373
374
375
376
377
378
379
380
381
382
383
384
385
386
387
388
389
390
391
392
393
394
395
396
397
398
399
400
401

402
403
404
405
406
407

Answer: Ms. Fowler replied that they were working on securing space at the Nashua Community
College to hold Project Safeguard, which might make it more welcoming and increase the level
of excitement for the students.

Question: Vice-Chair Rothhaus asked if it would be possible to explore the number of events
that would have more than 200 people in attendance and see if there was a way gates could be
put up to block off certain parts of the school. She also said perhaps if there were over 200 or
300 people, then they would need police coverage.

Answer: Ms. Fowler replied that they already used the fire doors to block off sections of the
buildings when there was any sized event. She said it would not only be for the security of the
parts of the building that may be unsupervised, but it would make the families feel safer. She also
said there would be approximately five events that she felt would require a police detail.

Question: Board Member Halter asked if the Board could hear more about a Social & Emotion
Learning Specialist and a Reading Interventionist. Are they additional positions, or are they new,
and how will they help students succeed in school?

Answer: Ms. Fowler replied that the SEL Support Specialist would be an additional position to
respond to the current student needs. She said the Reading Interventionist was also a new
position as there were students at the James Mastricola Upper Elementary School who needed
additional help.

Board Member Hardy added that she felt it was extremely important that an SEL Support
Specialist was available as they could provide support in a classroom and allow the teacher to
continue teaching the class in its entirety.

Chief Educational Officer Olsen and the School Board thanked the staff members who spoke at
the meeting representing the elementary schools.

4. POLICIES

Chief Educational Officer Olsen commented that since the first reading, there had been no
comments, and legal counsel had also reviewed it.

a. Second Reading and Approval of Revised Admission of Tuition and Non-Resident
Students Policy (JFAB)

MOTION: Chair Martin made a motion to approve policy (JFAB) — Revised Admission of Tuition
and Non-Resident Students Policy, as presented, given its 2" reading. Vice-Chair Rothhaus
seconded the motion.

MOTION CARRIED: 4-0-0.

b. Approval of Revised Use of Physical Restraint/Seclusion Policy (JKAA)

MOTION: Chair Martin made a motion to approve policy (JKAA) — Revised Use of Physical
Restraint/Seclusion Policy, as presented, given its 2™ reading. Vice-Chair Rothhaus seconded
the motion.

MOTION CARRIED: 4-0-0.
Page 8 of 9



408
409
410
411
412
413
414
415
416
417
418
419
420
421
422
423
424
425
426
427
428
429
430
431
432
433
434
435
436
437
438
439
440
441
442
443
444

5. BOARD’S REVIEW OF CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN

Assistant Superintendent for Business Shevenell reviewed the Capital Improvement Plan, which
the Planning & Building Committee had approved.

2024 — 2025

e Roof at James Mastricola Elementary & James Mastricola Upper Elementary Schools: $707,000
e Replacement of Windows at the James Mastricola Upper Elementary School

e Technology Infrastructure Improvements

e HVAC Mini-Split Systems

e High School Locker Room (Perform a Study)

o Safety/Security (Received a Grant for Security Cameras & Locksets)

e SAU Central Office

Vice-Chair Rothhaus suggested that Food Service be a line item in the Capital Improvement Plan.
Assistant Superintendent for Business Shevenell agreed.

6. PUBLIC COMMENTS ON AGENDA ITEMS

Ms. Heather Robitaille, 45 Springfield Circle, addressed the Board and thanked the Food Service
Department'’s staff for all that they did.

Ms. Robitaille also said that, as a parent, she was very happy with the direction the district was
going regarding literacy and making sure that it was consistent and in alignment with all of the
schools. She also said she was very excited to hear how much interest the students had in the
music programs, and she particularly thanked Mr. McGuinness, Music Teacher, for all of his hard
work.

7. ADJOURNMENT

MOTION: At approximately 8:25 p.m., Board Member Hardy made a motion to adjourn. Board
Member Halter seconded the motion.

MOTION CARRIED: 4 -0 -0.

Page 9 of 9



JUSWITO0)/SUOIISIN() [EIIUIL) JIqUINN JUNCIIY 4 aged

:Aq paprwiqng

;10 suonsang) 38png

SHIA Pue SINJN :PaMa1A1 9q 0] s1a3png
20T ‘8 Atenuey




JUDWIUWI0))/SUOSINY) [BIIUIL) J3qUINN] JUNONY #38e]

:Aq panrwiqng

10y suonsan() 398png

SHIN Pue SININ :PIMIIAdI 9q 03 S1adpng
$T0T ‘8 Arenuef




